State of Michigan – RFP # 071I0200033
Fingerprinting Services
Questions & Answers 

	Number
	Bidder Question
	State of Michigan Response

	1. 
	Is the Contractor required to provide applicants with a reserved appointment slot for their fingerprinting session?
	Yes, the applicant should be able to schedule an appointment for fingerprinting online or by telephone.  However, this does not mean that walk-ins are disallowed.

	2. 
	Please clarify the service level requirement to be monitored and reported.  Should it be (a) no calls on hold for more than 2 minutes; (b) average on-hold time less than 2 minutes for all callers; or (c) x% of all calls answered within 2 minutes or another metric?
	(a) No calls on hold for more than 2 minutes. 

	3. 
	Evening hours – Are evening hours required at part-time or mobile locations?
	Yes, many locations in Northern Michigan and the UP are likely to be exclusively part-time or mobile.

	4. 
	Currently there are fingerprint transmission protocols established by MSP that only allow transmission of 60 records/hour between 5pm and 5am, Monday through Friday, and on weekends, with no transmissions allowed outside of those hours.  Will this requirement continue?
	Yes, if the prints are batched. 

If the prints are captured and immediately sent there are no blackout times.

	5. 
	Is the Contractor required to accept personal checks?
	Payment options are determined by the fingerprint vendor.  Commonly accepted methods of payment include E-check, escrow account, or credit card at the time of scheduling and cash, business check, or money order at the time of fingerprinting.

	6. 
	Can the Contractor require applicants to pay online via credit card or e-check?
	No.  Escrow accounts are preferred by larger providers or licensees with multiple locations. 

	7. 
	What are the payment terms for the EFT payment of State and FBI fees
	Not currently used.
MSP requires payment within 30 days from billing date.

	8. 
	Archiving Requirement – Will the Contractor be required to retrieve and resubmit archived records?  Can a fee be charged for this service?
	Yes, at the request of MSP.

MSP does not accept archived prints beyond the billing cycle.

	9. 
	Administrative Fee:

1. Is the administrative fee calculated on the Contractor’s Fingerprint Service Fee only?

2. Does the administrative fee only apply to MDCH and DHS applicants?
	1.  Yes.
2.  Yes, at this time.  Although, if additional departments require fingerprinting services and are added to this contract at a later date then the administrative fee would apply to the new departments as well.

	10. 
	The Contract term begins on 4/1/2010.  Is this when the Contractor must have a fully operational network that complies with these RFP requirements?  If not, when does the fully functional network have to be operational?
	The Contractor must be fully operational to meet the requirements of this RFP/Contract and be ready to provide services on the Contract start date. 

	11. 
	Are onsite mobile sessions for groups required?
	Yes, for groups of 30 or more.

	12. 
	Will the Contractor be required to provide manual validation against the MI Background Check System web interface prior to record transmission to the MLTCP web site where an MDCH applicant either (a) is fingerprinted prior to their information being available at the MI Background Check System web interface, or (b) is fingerprinted on-site with no scheduled appointment?
	DCH applicants will provide a system-generated form at the time of fingerprinting.  There is a process for downloading information from the online system for scheduled applicants to avoid redundant data entry.

	13. 
	Will the Contractor be required to provide web registration, channeling and equipment maintenance to MDCH and/or DHS facilities that have purchased their own livescan equipment?
	Yes.

	14. 
	Will the Contractor be required to provide escrow accounts to the approximately 900 Michigan entities utilizing this service currently?
	See response to Q5.  Many of the facilities in Michigan are corporations that prefer payment through an escrow account.

	15. 
	Will the Contractor be required to provide printed “hard” fingerprint cards produced from livescan submission to MSP for purposes such as Enrollment Officer background checks, applicants with physical issues that prevent collection of classifiable prints, applicants the FBI requests MSP to reprint even after second rejection, etc.?  
	Yes.
Livescan may become available for Enrollment Officers.

	16. 
	Will the Contractor be required to provide card scanning services for non-resident applicants?
	Yes, non-resident applicants will provide hard fingerprint cards to the vendor, who will scan and send to MSP.

	17. 
	Will the Contractor be required to validate requester IDs, fingerprint reasons and TCNs on all records prior to transmission to MSP?
	Yes.

	18. 
	Is the computation of the total quarterly sales based only on the Fingerprinting Service Fee or does it also include the fees from MSP-CRD and the FBI?
	The computation of the total quarterly sales is based on the Fingerprinting Service Fee only.

	19. 
	Is there a fee in addition to the State Administrative Fee for accessing the State of Michigan Background Check System?
	No. Contractor is responsible for any initial costs of connecting to MSP and the background check system but there are no ongoing access fees.

	20. 
	Can the State provide examples, redacted if appropriate, of the reports requested in section 1.042 of the RFP?
	No.  Billing reports are provided as csv files that contain protected information. Other report content will be finalized after contract implementation.

	21. 
	Can the State disclose which monitoring program is being used by the incumbent provider for item number 3 under General Requirements?
	No.

	22. 
	Can the State please define what constitutes a permanent office as defined in this RFP?  For example, is a permanent office defined as an office that keeps standard business hours (M-F 8:00 am – 5:00 pm) or can it include a location that is in a co-located facility that is visited every other Tuesday?
	A permanent office is defined as a location that is published or posted by the Contractor that provides fingerprinting services on a regular basis, including part-time offices.

	23. 
	Section 1.021: Contractor is required to schedule Applicants.  Does the State’s definition of “schedule” refer to A) or B) or both (A & B) below?

 A) Applicant Registration, whereby Applicant demographic data is collected (NAME, HEIGHT, ORI, etc...) in advance of fingerprint capture; and 

B) Applicant is required to set a PLACE and TIME for fingerprinting.
	B) The applicant is required to set a place and time. 

 

	24. 
	Section 1.021: Please clarify if the Contractor is able to accept REGISTERED Applicants on a walk-in basis, rather than restricting Applicants to a specific time and place?
	Applicants are encouraged to schedule an appointment but the contractor is permitted to accept applicants on a walk-in basis who present a system-generated fingerprint request form. 

	25. 
	Attachment B – Interface Information:
A) Is the described State of Michigan Background Check System Web Service solution a Contractor designed, built and maintained solution, or is it a State designed, built and maintained solution?  To clarify, is Applicant demographic data entered into a Contractor created solution and the demographic information is passed to the State as described?  

B) The RFP mentions that the Contractor uses two (2) web solutions.  Is the scheduling of appointments completed on a State created or Contractor created solution?
	The scheduling is done on the contractor solution, however, the applicant

demographic data and other related fields is passed from the Michigan

background check system to the contractor solution via a web service.



	26. 
	Section 1.022; #10:

A) What constitutes a “request for printing?”  

B) Is a “request for printing” a printed document that is collected at the time of fingerprinting or is it/could it be an electronically collected approval that was collected during the Applicant demographic data collection process at REGISTRATION (ie..scheduling)?

C) Under what conditions would the “request for printing” be retrieved by the Contractor and released to the State?

D) Is the Contractor required to store the “request for printing” electronically, requiring the Contractor to scan any request for printing that is collected in paper formats?

E) What utility/access would the State require the Contractor to use if the Contractor was to be required to retrieve archived “request for printing?”  Would the state want paper back, electronic files back, etc.
	A “request for printing” is a system-generated form provided by the applicant at the time of fingerprinting.  The request for printing may be required for auditing purposes and a paper or electronic copy will be acceptable.

	27. 
	Section 1.022; #12: Contractor is required to archive Applicant fingerprints for a period of no less than four years.  Does the State envision the need for the Contractor to access the archive regularly for State purpose of re-submitting, automatically, Applicant fingerprints on a regular/yearly basis?  If “No” to the former, for what purpose does the State require archived prints?
	MSP will not accept archived prints beyond the billing cycle.
No.


	28. 
	Section 2.170; Transition: Will the archived fingerprints maintained by the existing Contractor be supported by that Contractor for the required archive period, or will those fingerprints be archived by the new Contractor, in the event of a Contractor change.  If so, will the State govern the exchange of archive data?
	Old contract did not have a requirement for longer than the billing cycle.

	29. 
	Section 1.050 and 2.252; Deliverables and Acceptance: A large amount of detail concerning the acceptance of deliverables, namely Custom Software Deliverables, has been written in this RFP.  Does the State require ANY software to be delivered by the Contractor to the State?  Or, need the Contractor only be required to submit proof that software used by the Contractor in the course of its proposed solution to the State, whether is be custom or off-the-shelf, is compliant and able to provide the solution and deliverables outlined in Sections 1.020 though 1.022? 
	No. Software Deliverables are not required under this RFP.

	30. 
	What is the current total vendor fee per Applicant collected by the Contractor?  What portion (in dollars) of the total amount collected by the Contractor goes to the State?  
	State and FBI combined fee is $49.25.

This information is not necessary in order for a Bidder to provide a responsive proposal.  

	31. 
	3.022 Technical Proposal Evaluation Criteria:

A) How will the cost proposal be evaluated?  What evaluation criteria will be used?

B) Assuming cost is included within Evaluation Criteria 1 (Statement of Work), what percentage of the 20 points is allocated to cost?
	A) Refer to Section 3.023 Price Evaluation and 3.024 Award Recommendation in the RFP.
B) Cost is not included within Evaluation Criteria; Refer to Section 3.023 Price Evaluation for details.

	32. 
	3.022 Technical Proposal Evaluation Criteria:

Within Evaluation Criteria 1, please clarify “Criteria #2, #3 and #4.”  Where are these Criteria located within the RFP (page number, requirement number)?
	Criteria 2 is Item #4 under Specifications.

Criteria 3 is item #5 under General Requirements:  Plan for statewide and evening access.
Criteria 4 is item #3 under General Requirements:  Call Monitoring System.

	33. 
	3.022 Technical Proposal Evaluation Criteria:

A) How is company information evaluated?


B) Will Contracts within the State of Michigan be weighted the same as contracts with the State of Michigan?

C) Is Applicant processing experience in states other than Michigan weighted the same as Applicant processing experience in the State of Michigan?
	A) By the Bidders’ response to Section 4.011.
B) This information is not used as part of the evaluation criteria as noted in Section 3.022.

C) Yes.

	34. 
	Does the State have available, and will the State provide statistical data for current Applicant processing volumes by fingerprint site? By city? By region?
	DCH - Yes.  Please see attachment posted with Q&A document.
Mich. State Police: does not track data at this level.

	35. 
	Section 4.011 Company Information:
Revenues (Sales volumes) are not a mark of financial stability.  Would the State be evaluating other financial criteria? Such as:

· Debit to Equity Ratio

-  Profitability
	The State will evaluate what is provided in the proposal and seek additional information if necessary.

	36. 
	Section 2.130 Insurance: When should the minimum levels of insurance coverage be provided; at RFP Response submission or at Contract award?
	Insurance has to be provided with the signed Contract with the Contract number on it (see Section 2.133).

	37. 
	Can an extension of at least one week be granted to respond to this RFP?
	No.

	38. 
	Section 1.022; General Requirements #5: Must all sites be open once in the evening per week? If not, how many?
	No. One location within 25 miles of the applicant must be open during evening hours.

	39. 
	Section 1.022; General Requirements #6: Is the State mandating that all submissions are to be funneled through a single connection that will be used by the Contractor?
	Yes.

	40. 
	Section 1.022; Specifications #1: Will Bidders be allowed to certify their systems with MSP if they are already certified with the FBI and other states?  How long does it take to certify in Michigan?
	Yes, allow a minimum of 60 days for certification.

	41. 
	Section 1.022; Specifications #4: Does the State have any requirements that permanent sites must be open four or more days per week in order to provide convenience and service to applicants?  In other words, if a site is only open one or two days, should it be considered a permanent site?
	Services at the permanent site must meet the following requirements:  be located within 25 miles (one way) of the applicant and allow for fingerprinting within 10 of the request for an appointment.

	42. 
	Section 1.031; Contractor Staff, Roles, and Responsibilities: Are both a resume and a job description required for this question?
	Refer to Section 4.013 Staffing for more information.

	43. 
	Page 13, Specifications #1: Is Integrated Biometric Technology, LLC an approved MSP vendor for live-scan fingerprint hardware and software?
	No.  Integrated Biometric Technology, LLC is not an approved MSP vendor for live-scan fingerprint hardware and software.

	44. 
	Page 10, Section 1.012, Background: Does MSP assist participants in locating fingerprint offices?
	No, MSP is not responsible for locating fingerprint offices for applicants.

	45. 
	Page 12, Section 1.022, General Requirements #12: Does the bidder have to archive records for no less than four years?
	No, the bidder must archive records for no less than the billing cycle.  Once the bill has been approved and paid by the Department, the archived records are no longer required.

	46. 
	Page 10, 1.012 Background, third paragraph: Does Michigan State Police-Criminal Records Division (MSP-CRD) accept electronic applicant print submissions from governmental units for other legislatively mandated fingerprint purposes?
	Yes, Michigan State Police-Criminal Records Division (MSP-CRD) does accept electronic applicant print submissions from governmental units for other legislatively mandated fingerprint purposes.

	47. 
	Page 10, Section 1.012 Background, third paragraph: Does the contract resulting from this RFP prevent the bidder from entering into an agreement to provide applicant print processing services as an agent for a governmental unit for other legislatively mandated fingerprint purposes?
	No, the contract resulting from this bid does not prevent the bidder from entering into an agreement to provide applicant print processing services as an agent for a governmental unit for other legislatively mandated fingerprint purposes.

	48. 
	Page 11, Section 1.021 In Scope, the first sentence: Is the word Biller a typographic error for the word Bidder?
	Yes, the word Biller should be corrected to Bidder.
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